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FREEDMAN & TAITELMAN, LLP
Bryan J. Freedman, Esq. (#151990)
Matthew E. Voss, Esq. (#198728)
1901 Avenue of the Stars, Suite 500
Los Angeles, California 90067

Tel: (310) 201-0005

Fax: (310) 201-0045

Attorneys for Plaintiffs The Collective Management Group, LLC e
dba The Collective and Aaron Ray

" SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
FOR THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES

Case No.: 88358{374

Defendants. U.S.C. §1030);

0. INJUNCTIVE RELIEF;

7. BREACH OF WRITTEN
CONTRACT; AND

8. BREACH OF¥ IMPLIED
COVENANT OF GOOD FAITH

AND FAIR DEALING

THE COLLECTIVE MANAGEMENT )
GROUP, LLC, a Califomnia limited hability )
company doing business as THE ) COMPLAINT FOR:
COLLECTIVE; and AARON RAY, an )
individual, ) 1. INTENTIONAL INTERFERENCE
) WITH CONTRACTUAL
Plaintiffs, ) RELATIONS;
) 2. INTENTIONAL INTERFERENCE
Vs. ) WITH PROSPECTIVE
) ECONOMIC ADVANTAGE;
) 3. FRAUD;
DRAKE BELL, an individual; ROB } 4. NEGLIGENT
KAHANE, an individual; and DOES 1 through ) MISREPRESENTATION;
100, inclusive, ) 5. VIOLATION OF COMPUTER
) FRAUD AND ABUSE ACT (18
)
)
)

Plaintiffs The Collective Management Group, LLC, doing business as The Collective
(“The Collective”) and Aaron Ray (“Ray”) (The Collective and Ray are hereinafier collectively
referred to as “Plaintiffs”) complain against Defendant Drake Bell (“Bell), an individual,
Defendant Rob Kahane (“Kahane™), an individual, and DOES 1-100 (collectively referred to
herein as “Defendants™), as follows:
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INTRODUCTION

1. Approximately four (4) months ago, Kahane showed up at the door step of The
Collective, claiming to be broke, with a very sick wife, begging for a financial relationship with
The Collective. In an effort to induce The Collective to temporarily hire him as an independent
contractor, Kahane made promises of bringing new clients to The Collective, re-starting Trauma

Records, while promising to give The Collective an ownership interest in that record company

and developing other opportunities for The Collective to derive income.

2 Trusting Kahane’s sob story and believing in the representations about providing
additional revenue sources for The Collective, The Collective, in or about May 2006, hired

Kahane as an independent contractor for a four (4) month period of time to provide management

‘services on behalf of The Collective for its clients in the entertainment industry. Much to The

Collective’s shock, Kahane’s representations were merely a ruse to provide him with access to
The Collective’s sensitive computer files pertaining to its clients and enable him to communicate
and gain relationships with clients of The Collective and Ray in an attempt to steal their clients.

3. In furtherance of Kahane’s devious plan, while Michael Green (“Green”) of The
Collective was in Venice, Italy, and Ray was otherwise unavailable, Kahane engaged in secret
meetings with clients of The Coliective, including Drake Bell (“Bell™"), while simultaneously
disparaging Ray and The Collective in a well-designed plan to stea) Bell away from The
Collective and Ray, notwithstanding his full knowledge that Bell was a party to a written
management agreement with Ray:.

4, Kahane met Bell in or about July 2006 and, instantly, became a bad influence on
him, all in an effort to build his relationship with Bell and lure him away from The Collective
and Ray. For example, and not by way of limitation, Kahane set Bell up to go to Las Vegas for a
weekend, without advising Ray, and, while in Las Vegas, Bell jeopardized his career by engaging
in certain illegal activities, at the encouragement of Kahane. Kahane began involving himself in
Bell’s life much more frequently after that Las Vegas trip. When Ray later confronted Kahane

about Bell’s behavior and lifestyle, Kahane said that he had it all under control and that Ray
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should not worry about it. In fact, Kahane was, at all relevant times, encouraging Bell’s behavior
and continued involvement in certain illegal activities.

5. In a continued effort to disparage Ray and fortify his relationship with Bell,
Kahane, in or about mid-August 2006, without informing Ray, secretly took Bell to Bell’s
entertainment lawyer’s office to be Bell’s sole managerial representative in executing certain
contracts with Universal Music Group {(“Universal”). Much to Ray’s shock and surprise,

Bell signed those contracts. When Bell asked Kahane where Ray was, Kahane said that Ray was

with a more important non-client of The Collective, Denise Richards (“Richards™), and was

trying to sign her. Kahane’s statement was a complete fabrication as Ray has never met
Richards, Jet alone tried to sign her as a client. Kahane then called into The Collective and put
someone from The Collective on the speaker-phonein Bell's lawyer’s office who led Bell to
believe that Kahane’s statement was true. Prior to Kahane’s departure from The Collective, Ray
asked both Kahane and Bell for a copy of the Universal contracts that Bell signed and they
refused to provide Ray with a copy thereof.

6. Kahane’s continued attempts to build a relationship with Bell and Plaintiffs and
disparage Plaintiffs in the process, although tortious and actionable, illegal conduct, was
successful 1n that on September 12, 2006, The Collective received a letter from Bell .illegally
terminating his written management contract with Ray, as well as his relationship with Plaintiffs,
indicating that all queries regarding Bell’s career should be directed to Kahane. The Collective
received the letter after they had sent a cease and desist lelter to Kahane on September 11, 2006
demanding that Kahane not interfere with Bell’s written management contract with Ray.

7. This conduct of Kahane is nothing new. His unscrupulous conduct started 20
years ago when, after he was fired as a junior agent from International Creative Management,
Inc. ("ICM™), Doug Isaac (“Isaac”) brought Kahane into his company (“Isaac’s Company™) as a
full partner. At that time, Isaac’s Company was representing the band “The Knack.” One
evening, in the middle of the night, Kahane and the manager of The Knack came into Isaac’s

office and took all of the fumiture and files therefrom. Kahane then tried to steal the band

COMPLAINT




o]

J o ot

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20

I
2

3]
[ #S ]

24
25
26
27
28

“Missing Persons” and the rest of Isaac’s chients. Kahane also left Isaac to pay all of Isaac’s
Company’s bills for which Kahane was, in part, responsible as a partner.

8. Kahane’s conduct has continued throughout his career. Within the past 20 years,
Kahane has been a defendant in numerous lawsuits based on his unscrupulous conduct. It seems
that this all too familiar practice by Kahane, who started this endeavor 20 years ago, has
continued to thrive un-checked. However, 1t has not gone un-noticed. Within that period of
time, Kahane has been sued by numerous individuals and entities. A judge in a case in Great

Bntam took note of Kahane 8 unscrupulous conducl and confirmed Kahane ] uneﬂncal character

by calling him an unreliable and untrustworthy witness. This Complaint tells the story of

Kahane’s theft of The Collective’s and Ray’s client, Bell.

ALLEGATIONS COMMON TO ALL CAUSES OF ACTION

9. The Collective Management Group, LLC, is, and at all times herein mentioned
was, a California limited liability company doing business as The Co]_lective, and engaged in the
practice of providing personal management and other services to individuals in the entertainment
industry, with its principal place of business in Los Angeles County, California.

10. Ray is, and at all times mentioned herein was, an individual who resides
in Los Angeles County, California. At all times mentioned herein, Ray is, and has been, a
personal manager employed by the Collective.

11. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that Kahane is, and at all
times mentioned herein, was an individual who resides in Los Angeles County, California.

12.  Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that Bell is, and at all
times meniioned herein, was an individual who resides in Los Angeles County, California.

13. Defendants Does 1 through 100, inclusive, are sued herein under fictitious names.
Their true names, and the capacities in which they caused or contributed to Plaintiffs’ damages,
are presently unknown to Plaintiffs. Pursuant to California Code of Civil Procedure §474,
Plaintiffs will seek leave to amend this Complaint to reflect their true names and capacities as

soon as they ascertain them. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that each of

-
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the fictitiously-named defendants is responsible in some manner for the occurrences herein
alleged, and that Plaintiffs’ damages as herein alleged were proximately caused by those
defendants.

14.  Prior to July 19, 2006, Ray had an on-going professional relationship with Bell
and had represented him as his exclusive personal manager in connection with Bell’s activities in
all areas of the entertainment industry.

15. On or about July 19 2006 Ray entered 1nt0 a personal management agreement

(the “Agreenlent ) w1th Bell, whereby Bell agreed to engage Ray as his “exclusive personal

manager, representative and advisor, throughout the world, with respect to all [of his] activities

throughout the Music Industry. . . .” (A true and correct copy of the Agreement is attached hereto

as Exhibit “1”" and incorporated as though fully set forth herein). The term of the Agreement was

deemed to have commenced on June 1, 2005 and “shall continue until the completion of the
Album Cycle . . . respecting the fourth long-playing phonograph record album [the “Fourth
Album”] comprised of Artist’s newly recorded studio performances released pursuant toa
Recording Agreement . . . during the Term.” As used in the Agreement, the phrase “Album
Cycle” means “the period ending on the later to occur of the end of touring in support of a
particular Album or the commencement of recording of the immediately succeeding Album.”

16. As described above, and in more fully below, shortly afier The Collective hired
Kahane, Kahane began executing a scheme (the “Scheme”) to encourage, cajole and palaver Bell
to terminate his relationship with The Collective and Ray, breach the Agreement and sign a
management agreement with Kahane to become his personal representative in the music industry.
Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and thereon allege, that in committing these tortious acts
Kahane used property, trade secrets and confidential information of The Collective in an effort to
further the Scheme.

17.  Kahane has been aware for a long time that Ray had an on-going professional
relationship with Bell and has represented him as his exclusive personal manager in connection

with Bell’s activities in all areas of the entertainment industry. Kahane has also been aware of
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1 || the Agreement since July 19, 2006 when he was present at Ago restaurant with Bell and Ray,

2 || during which time Bell personally signed the Agreement in Kahane’s presence. Kahane 1s also

3 || well aware of the Aéreement because Ray discussed it with Kahane several times after July 19,

4 || 2006. Kahane even boldly told Ray the Agreement would not hold up in court.

5 18.  The term of Kahane’s independent contractor relationship with The Collective

6 || ended in our about early September 2006. During said relationship, The Collective paid Kahane

7 || approximately $50,000.00.

8 o 19 On ér before Saptember 11, 200(.6-,: P]amtlffs ie:;,u;léd for the ﬁrst tlIIlB, through

9 | various individuals, of Kahane’s Scheme. On September 11, 2006, counsel for Plaintiffs sent a
10 || cease and desist letter (the “Cease and Desist Letter’”) to Kahane, via e-mail, personal delivery
11 [ and regular mail, advising that if B&ll térninates, or in any other way breaches, the Agreement,
12 || Kahane will be liable for Intentional Interference with Contractual Relations and Interference
13 || with Prospective Economic Advantaée, based upon his knowledge of the Agreement and intent
14 || to induce its breach by Bell. (A true and correct copy of the Cease and Desist Letter is attached
15 || hereto as Exhibit “2” and incorporated as though fully set forth herein). In the Cease and Desist
16 || Letter, Plaintiffs also reminded Kahane about the Agreement and the fact that he was present
17 || when Bell signed it. Plaintiffs also aitached to the Cease and Desist Letter a copy of the
18 || Agreement.
19 20.  Inresponse to the Cease and Desist Letter, Kahane orchestrated a plan to have
20 || Bell’s lawyer fax a letter from Bell to Plaintiffs on September 11, 2006, via facsimile, back-dated
21 | to September 8, 2006, pursuant to which Bell would terminate the Agreement. Plaintiffs did, in
22 || fact, receive a letter from Bell (the “Termination Letter”) on September 12, 2006 at or about 5:36
23 || p.m., back-dated to September 8, 2006, stating that “I have elected to terminate the management
24 | relationship between us.” (A true and correct copy of the Termination Letter is attached hereto as
25 || Exhibit “3” and incorporated as though fully set forth herein). To no one’s surprise, the
26 || Termination Letter further states that all queries regarding Bell’s career should be directed to Rob
27 || Kahane. The Termination Letter further illustrates Kahane’s continued attempt to steal Bell from
28 || Plaintiffs.
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FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Intentional Interference with Contractual Relations by Ray against Kahane)
21.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 20 of
the Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
22.  The Agreement is a valid, binding contract between Ray and Bell supported

by adequate consideration. Specifically, as stated in the Agreement, “[1]n consideration of the

services rendered by Manager to you hereunder sub] ect to the terms and condltlons of this

Agreement you irrevocably assign to Manager, and you Shall pay to Manager as and when

received by you or applied in your behalf, sums equal to” certain commissions specified in the
Agreement based upon compensation received by Bell after the effective date of the Agreement.

23, Kahane liad pricr knowledge of the Agreement because he was present at Ago
restaurant on July 19, 2006 with Bell and Ray, during which time Bell personally signed the
Agreement in Kahane’s presence. Kahane also discussed the Agreement with Ray several times
after July 19, 2006.

24.  Kahne engaged in acts specifically designed to induce Bell to breach the
Agreement by virtue of carrying out the Scheme and encouraging Bell to terminate the
Agreement and sign a similar contract with Kahane.

25.  Bell’s termination of his management relationship with Plaintiffs, as well as the
Agreement, is a breach thereof because the term of the Agreement has not yet expired in that the
Album Cycle for the Fourth Album has not yet completed.

26. The only reference in the Agreement to Bell’s ability to terminate the Agreement
is as follows: “[y]ou shall have the right to terminate the Term of this Agreement if Manager dies
or becomes permanently disabled or if Manager ceases to be personally involved in the
management of your career and, within a reasonable time following Manager’s receipt of your
notice complaining of same, fails to resume such personal involvement.” (Agreement, §11).

None of these conditions apply.
Iy
Iy
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27. Bell’s breach of the Agreement was proximately caused by Kahane’s unjustified

2 || and wrongful conduct in encouraging Bell to terminate it. As such, Kahane’s actions directly
3 || resulted in the disruption of the contractual relationship between Ray and Bell.
4 28.  Asaproximate result of Kahane’s intentional interference with the Agreement,
5 || Ray has been damaged in an amount to be determined at the time of trial, but in excess of the
6 || general jurisdiction of this Court.
7 29, Kahane’s conduct was wanton, willful, malicious, oppressive, despicable, and
8 wasengaged 1n w1th a conscious disreg;l;c{ 6f Ra;/’“s rlghts, a.nd Jusuﬁes anaward—of ]
9 Il exemplary and punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish, deter, and make an
10 || example of Kahane, and to be shown according to proof at trial.
- 1T L
12 SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
13 (Intentional Interference with Prospective Economic Advantage by Plaintiffs
14 against Kahane)
15 30.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 29 of
16 || the Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
17 31.  Plaintiffs and Bell had a long-standing business relationship which financially
18 || benehtted Plaintiffs and, but for the acts of Kahane as alleged herein, would have continued to
19 || provide economic benefits to Plaintiffs.
20 32.  Kahane had actual knowledge of the relationship between Plaintiffs and Bell by
21 (| virtue of the fact that Kahane briefly worked for The Collective as an independent contractor and
22 || he was present when Bell executed the Agreement.
23 33.  Kahane intentionally induced a breach of the Agreement by Bell by encouraging,
24 || cajoling and palavering Bell to terminate his on-going business relationship with Plaintiffs,
25 || breach the Agreement and sign a management agreement with Kahane to become his personal
26 || representative in the music industry.
274777
28 (/77
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jurisdiction of this Court.
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34, The Collective has a great economic interest in the Agreement and the
professional relationship between Ray and Bell because Ray is a personal manager employed by
The Collective and The Collective as a whole, in addition to Ray, has provided personal
management services to Bell.

35.  Asaproximate result of Kahane’s intentional interference with Plaintiffs’
prospective business relations with respect to Bell, Plaintiffs have suffered, and continue to

suffer, damages in an amount to be determined at the time of trial, but in excess of the general

36.  Kahane’s conduct was wanton, willful, malicious, oppressive, despicable, and

was engaged in with a conscious disregard of Plaintiffs’ rights, and justifies an award of

“exemplary and punitive damages in anm amount sufficient to pimmish; deter; and make an

example of Kahane, and to be shown according to proof at trial.

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION
(Fraud by The Collective against Kahane)

37.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 36 of
the Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

38.  Poor to the commencement of Kahane’s independent contractor relationship
with The Collective, Kahane made representations to The Collective, promising to bring The
Collective new clients for representation and other sources of income. Additionally, duning the
period of Kahane’s independent contractor relationship, he promised Plaintiffs that he would re-
launch Trauma Records and that The Collective would have a financial interest in that.

39. The representations made by Kahane were in fact false. The true facts were that
Kahane did not intend to bring new clients to The Collective, let alone other sources of income
and, instead, made said representations in an effort to further his scheme to steal Bell away from
Plaintiffs.

40. When Kahane made these representations, he knew them to be false and made

these representations with the intention to deceive and defraud The Collective and to induce

-9
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The Collective to act in reliance on these representations in the manner hereafter alleged, or with
the expectation that Plaintiffs would so act.

41, The Collective, at the time these representations were made by Kahane and at the
time The Collective took the actions herein alleged, were ignorant of the falsity of Kahane’s
representations and believed them to be true. In reliance on these representations, The Collective

was induced to hire Kahane as an independent contractor. Had The Collective known the actual

facts, they would not have taken such action. The Collective’s reliance on Kahane’s

fepresentations was justirﬁedﬂbé‘éa.ﬁvsé tlrlﬂé&rréasonably béliew;edl"[iqat ‘Kahane would bﬁng new
clients to The Collective, as well as additional revenue sireams.

42.  Asaproximate result of the frandulent conduct of Kahane, as herein alleged,

The Collective was induced to hire Kahane, by réason of which The Collective has been
damaged in an amount to be determined at the time of trial, but in excess of the general
jurisdiction of this Court.

43.  The aforementioned conduct of Kahane was an intentional misrepresentation,
deceit, or concealment of material facts known to Kahane, with the intention to thereby deprive
The Collective of property or legal rights or otherwise cause it injury, and was despicable
conduct that subjected The Collective to a cruel and unjust hardship in conscious disregard of its

rights, so as to justify an award of exemplary and punitive damages.

FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Negligent Misrepresentation by The Collective against Kahane)

44.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 43 of
the Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

45.  Kahane owed The Collective a duty to be truthful and to not provide false
statements and false and misleading accounting and other information because Kahane knew,
or should have known, that The Collective would be relying upon the information that was
provided to them in deciding to hire Kahane as an independent contractor.

111
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I independent contractor,

46, As stated above, Kahane made numerous representations to The Collective about
his ability to provide clients for The Collective, as well as additional revenue streams. When

Kahane made the representations described above (those allegations are specifically incorporated

‘herein by reference), Kahane had no reasonable grounds for believing them to be true in that

Kahane knew, or should have known, the true facts as set forth above.
47.  Kahane made the representations with the intention of inducing The Collective to

act in reliance on the representations and The Collective did so rely. These representations were

Wtr"é]rse, as described mn detail above.

48.  The Collective was nnaware of the falsity of Kahane’s representations. Indeed,

The Collective justifiably relied on Kahane’s representations in deciding to hire Kahane as an

49.  As aproximate result of its reliance on Kahane’s representations, The Collective

has suffered damages in an amount to be proved at trial.

FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Violation of Computer Fraud and Abuse Act (18 U.S.C. §1030) by The Collective against
Kahane)

50.  Plamtiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 49 of
the Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

51.  During his independent contractor relationship with The Collective, Kahane was
provided access to The Collective’s computers and computer system, that were used in interstate
commerce (the “Computers™) in connection with the duties he was performing for The
Collective. Access to the Computers was restricted to performing work-related tasks and
advancing the business interests of The Collective.

52. The Collective is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that during
Kahane’s Scheme to lure Bell away from The Collective and Ray, Kahane accessed the
Computers for non-work related purposes without authorization. Specifically, approximately one
(1) week prior to Kahane’s departure from The Collective, Kahane accessed The Collective’s

-11-
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computers and deleted from the Computers numerous e-mails containing estimates for Bell’s
anticipated income. These e-mails included specific dollar amounts regarding Bell and his
actual, expected revenues, and income, from publishing and other sources. Kahane deleted
said e-mails to prevent The Collective from having such information, in furtherance of the
Scheme.

53.  Asaproximate result of Kahane’s violation of the Computer Fraud and Abuse

Act (18 U.S.C. §1030), The Collective has been damaged in an amount to be determined at trial

but in an amount exceeding the jurisdictional minimum.
54. The conduct of Kahane was wanton, willful, malicious, oppressive, despicable,

and engaged in with a conscious disregard of The Collective’s rights and justifies an award of

“exemplary and punitive damages in an amount sufficient to punish;, deter, and malke an example

of Kahane, and to be shown according to proof at the time of trial.

SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION

(Injunctive Relief by Plaintiffs against Kahane)

55. Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 54 of
the Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

56. At the time that Kahane convinced Bell to leave The Collective and Ray and
terminate the Agreement, Kahane knew that Bell was not free to enter into any similar agreement
with Kahane, and that Bell was under a contract with Plaintiffs. Notwithstanding Kahane’s
knowledge of this information, Kahane circumvented the Agreement and convinced Bell to.]eave
The Collective and Ray and terminate the Agreement, all to Plaintiffs’ irreparable injury and
damage.

57.  Bell has become an accomplished artist in the entertainment industry through the
joint efforts of Plaintiffs and Bell. Bell’s success in the entertainment industry has been, in part,
a result of the experience, instruction and guidance he has received from Plaintiffs. Plaintiffs
have expended a great deal of time, and large sums of money, promoting Bell and his career.

Bell has thereby achieved the status of a “star.” These sums were expended by Plaintiffs as an

-12-
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investment for the future success of Bel, and the return on this investment was expected to

be the future popularity and success to be achieved by Bell during the term of the Agreement
after he had achieved the reputation of a “star” performer. Plaintiffs would not have expended
these sums, and this amount of time, but for the expectation that Plaintiffs would be able to
represent Bell as his personal manager during the full term of the Agreement.

58.  Plaintiffs are able, ready, and willing to perform and fully comply with the terms

of the Agreement, during the term of the Agreement.

59.  The services that have been rendered by Plaintiffs pursuant to the Agreement, on
behalf of Bell, are of a special, unique, and intellectual character, which gives them peculiar

value. As such, the loss of Bell as a client of Plaintiffs cannot be reasonably and adequately

‘compensated in daiiages in ai action at law. Kdlianie’s intentional interference with the

Agreement, as well as the business relationship between Plaintiffs and Bell, has caused, and will
continue to cause, Plaintiffs great and irreparable injury for which there is no plain, speedy, or
adequate remedy at law. Plaintiffs are therefore entitled to an injunction against Kahane
restraining him from representing Bell for the duration of the term of the Agreement, and from

causing or contributing to the breach of the Agreement.

SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION
(Breach of Contract by Ray against Bell)

60.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 59 of
the Complaint as though fully set forth herein.

61.  The Agreement is a valid, binding contract between Ray and Bell supported
by adequate consideration. Specifically, as stated in the Agreement, “[i]n consideration of the
services rendered by Manager to you hereunder, subject to the terms and conditions of this
Agreement, you irrevocably assign to Manager, and you shall pay to Manager, as and when
received by you or applied in your behalf, sums equal to” certain commissions specified in the

Agreement based upon compensation received by Bell after the effective date of the Agreement.

Iy
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1 62.  Ray has, at all times, performed all the conditions and terms of the Agreement on
2 || his part to be performed.
3 63.  Bell’s termination of his management relationship with Plaintiffs, as well as the
4 || Agreement, is a breach thereof because the term of the Agreement has not yet expired in that the
5 || Album Cycle for the Fourth Album has not yet completed.
6 64.  The only reference in the Agreement to Bell’s ability to terminate the Agreement
7 | 1s as follows: [y]ou shall have the nght to terminate the Term of this Apreement if Manager dles
g “or becomes permanently dlsabled or 1f Manager ceases to be persona]ly mvolved in the
9 || management of your career and, within a reasonable time following Manager’s receipt of your
10 || notice complaining of same, fails to resume such personal involvement.” (Agreement, §11).
11 || None of these conditions apply.”
12 65.  As aproximate result of Bell’s breach of the Agreement, Ray has been damaged
13 || i an amount to be determined at the time of trial, but in excess of the general jurisdiction of this
14 || Court.
15
16 EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION
17 (Breach of Implied Covenant of Good Faith and Fair Dealing by Ray against Bell)
18 66.  Plaintiffs incorporate by reference the allegations of paragraphs 1 through 65 of
19 |[ the Complaint as though fully set forth herein.
20 67. A covenant of good faith and fair dealing is implied in the Agreement. The
21 || covenant is to the effect that the parties to the Agreement will not do anything deliberately to
22 || deprive the other parties of the benefits thereof.
23 68.  Bell breached the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing by acting
24 | arbitrarily and 1n bad faith in making a conscious and deliberate decision to terminate the
25 || Agreement, which act unfairly frustrated the agreed common purpose of the Agreement and
26 || disappointed the reasonable expectations of Ray. Bell committed said act in bad faith without
27 || regard to the purpose of the Agreement or Ray’s expectations with respect thereto.
28 (/77
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| AS TO THE FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION:

69.  As aproximate result of Bell’s breach of the implied covenant of good faith and
fair dealing, Ray has suffered, and continues to suffer, damages in an amount to be determined at

the time of trial, but in excess of the general jurisdiction of this Court.

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs pray for judgment against Defendants, and each of them, as

follows:

1. For an award of compensatory damages in an amount to be determined according
to proof;
2.~ For an award of all cosis of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent

allowable by law;

3. For such other and further, legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem Just
and proper; and

4, For an award of punitive damages in an amount appropriate to punish Kahane

and deter others from engaging in similar misconduct.

AS TO THE SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION:

1. For an award of compensatory damages in an amount to be determined according
to proof;
2. For an award of all costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent

allowable by law;

3. For such other and further, legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem just
and proper; and

4. For an award of punitive damages in an amount appropriate to punish Kahane

and deter others from engaging in similar misconduct.
Iy
Iy
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AS TO THE THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION:

1. For an award of compensatory damages in an amount to be determined according
to proof;

2. For an award of all costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent
allowable by law;

3. For such other and further, legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem just

and proper; and

4. For an award of punitive damages in an amount appropriate to punish Kahane

and deter others from engaging in similar misconduct.

ASTO THE FOURTH CAUSE OF ACTION: -

1. For an award of compensatory damages in an amount to be determined according
to proof;
2. For an award of all costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent

allowable by law; and

3. For such other and further, legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem just

and proper.

ASTO THE FIFTH CAUSE OF ACTION:

1. For an award of compensatory damages in an amount to be determined according
to proof;

2. For an award of all costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent
allowable by law; |

3. For such other and further, legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem just
and proper; and

4. For an award of punitive damages in an amount appropriate to punish Kahane

and deter others from engaging in similar misconduct.

-16-
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1|} ASTO THE SIXTH CAUSE OF ACTION:
2 1. For a temporary restraining order enjoining and restraining Kahane from
3 || representing Bell in any capacity in the entertainment industry and from causing or contributing
4 || to the breach of the Agreement;
5 2. For a preliminary injunction enjoining and restraining Kahane, pendente lite,
6 || from representing Bell in any capacity in the entertainment industry and from causing or
7 || contributing to the breach of the Agreement;
8| 3. Forapermanent injunction enjoining and restraining Kahane from representing
9 || Bell in any capacity in the enteriainment industry and from causing or contributing to the breach
10 || of the Agreement, for the duration of the term of the Agreement;
11 4, Foran award of all costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent
12 || allowable by law; and
13 5. For such other and further, relief as the Court may deem just andproper.
14
15 | ASTO THE SEVENTH CAUSE OF ACTION:
16 1. For an award of compensatory damages in an amount to be determined according
17 {| to proof;
18 2. For an award of all costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys’ fees to the extent
19 || allowable by law; and
20 3. For such other and further, legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem just
21 || and proper.
22
23 | ASTO THE EIGHTH CAUSE OF ACTION:
24 1. For an award of compensatory damages in an amount to be determined according
25 || to proof;
26 2. For an award of all costs of suit, including reasonable attorneys® fees to the extent
27 || allowable by law; and |
281 /71
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23
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28

3. For such other and further, legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem just

and proper.

Dated: September 18, 2006

FREEDMAN & TAITELMAN, LLP

%5/ )

ys or nuffs The Collective
e Manage {ent Group, LLC dba The

Collective and Aaron Ray
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Agreement (“Agreement™) made execuied this 17" day of July 2006, by and bctween
Aaron Ray, 9100 Wilshire Blvd, Suite 700 West, Beverly Hills, CA 90212 (herein called
“Manager”) -and- Drake Bell (herein called “herein called “you™ or " Antist™).

WITNESSETH:

In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises hereinafier contained, the parties
hereby agree as follows:

1. The term of this Agreemenl (the “Term™) shall be deemed to have commenced as
of June 1, 2005 and shall coptinue until the completion of the Album Cycle | (defined below)

recorded studio performances relesscd pursuant to a Recording Agreement (each, an “Album”)..
during the Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 1otal Gross Compensation on which the Fee
(defined belaw) 1s payable (“Commissionable Gross™) does not equal or exceed Five Hundred
Thousand Dollars (3500,000) as of the end of the Album Cycle respecting the second Album
released during the Term, then you shall have the nght_during the immediately ensuing ninety
{S0F day period-to-terminate the . --T-cnn_ﬁj)t)n Wwritlen notice (o Manager. For purposes of the
preceding sentence only, ""Commissionable Gross” shall include campensation payable pursuant
to offers declined by Artist during the Term, monies received on your behalf by agents but not
yei disbursed io you, nel advances to you pursuant 1o a Recording Agreement (i.e., gross amount
less ectual expended recording costs) and an amount equal to the Toyalties payable with respect
1o the exploitation of recordings or musical compositjons during the Term for which you shall
have yet to be accounted. As used herein, a “Recording Agreement” shall mean an agreement
respecling your services as a musical recording artist.-with a record label with its own marketing
and promulmn capabllmes which 15 distributed in the United Siates by one of the, currently fowr,
so-called “mejor” record distributors (i.e., Sony BMG, Wamer, EMI or Umvarsal) o1 the
successor of any of the forepoing. As nsed herein, an “Album Cycle” shall mean the period
ending on the later 10 occur of the end of touring in support of a particular Albwm or the
commmencement of recording of the immediately succeeding Album.

2. You hereby engage Manager, during the Term hereof, s your exclusive personal
roanager, representative and advisor, throughout the world, with respect 1o all your activities
throughout the Musijc Indusiry, and Manager hereby accepis such engagement.

3. (a) Manager shall confer with, counsel and advise you in all matlers
pertaining to your career in the Music Industry mcludmg, without Limitetion (i) the selection of
literary, artistic, and musical material; (ii) all matters pertaining to publicity, public relations and
advertising; m) general practices in 1he Music Industry regarding such matters as Manager has
knowledge, such as compensation and privileges extended for similar artistic services; (iv) the
selection of, and negotiatjon with, theatrical booking and similar egencies and other third parties

that seek and procure employment and engagements for artists; and (v) the selection of, and
negotiation with, any and all potential users of your talenis.
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(b) You shall use your best efforis to immediately advise Manaper of all

. offers of employment, and of all inquiries conceming your career, so that Manager may

determine and advise you whether same are compatible with your career.

(c) You hereby acknowledge that Manager is not licensed under the Labor
Code of the State of California &s a talent agent or as an employment agent or otherwise under

the Business and Professions Code of the State of California, or as a theatrical employmeni

agency or other employment agency under the General Business Law of the State of Ney York
or as any of the foregoing under the laws of any State, and that Manager has nol promised to
procure employment or engagements far you, and that Manager shall not be obligated 1o procure
any croployment or engagements for you hereunder. You shall be solely responsible for
paymnent of all necessary commissions 1o booking or similar apencies.
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4, You hereby authorize and appoint Manager as your true and lawful agent and
altorney-in-fact 10 do everything for you and in your behalf which you could legally do on your
own behalf, which is permissible hereunder. This power is Iimited lo the right, power and
privilege 10 exccute {or you, in your name, and on your behalf, documents and contracts for your

services solely in connection with single engapements ( i.e.. so-called “one-nighters?) conceming

WhIEh YU have “previously ‘been advised and which you have approved, and lo approve
photographs and other publicity materials pertaining to you which incorporate likenesses of you
that have been approved by you.

3. In consideration of the services 1endered by Manager o you hereunder, subject 1o
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, you hereby irrevocably assign 1o Manager, and you

shall pey 10 Manager, as and when reccived by you or applied in your behalf, sums equal to the
following (the *Fee™):

(a) With respect to your services in the Music Industry and the products thereof
that are released during or within six (6) months following the Term pursuant {o agreemenis

entered into by you prior to or during the Term, fifieen percent (15%) of the Gross
Compensation eamed in connection therewith, in perpetuity.

(b)  [lntentionally Deleted)

(c) The Fee shall be paid 1o Manager as and when said Gross Compensation 18
received by you, without any Jimitation of time, directly or indirectly, or by any person, firmn ot
corporation on your behalf pursuant 10 (i) any and all coniracts, engagements and cormmitments
now in existence, (ii) any and al] contracls, engagements and commitments entered into or
negotiated during the Tenmn hereof, (iii) any and all exlensions, additions, subsiilutions, renewals,
replacements, modifications and amendments of all such contracts, enpagements and
commitments referred 10 in (i), and (ii) above, (iv) any and all copyrights and publishing rights in
musical compositions written, composed, arranged or adapted, in whole or in part, by you prior
to or during the Term, and {v) any and &l judgments, awards, settlements, payments, damages
and proceeds relsting 1o any suits, claims, actions, proceedings or arbitralion proceedings anising
out of alleped breach, non-performance or infrinpement by others of any of the coniracts,
€ngagements, commitments, other agreements or rights referred to in (1), (31), (317) and (iv) above,
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al}l of which regardless of when entcred into, when performed and when efiective. Any monies

- duc to Manager resulting from subparagraph 5{c)(v) sbove, shall be computed after first

deducting counse] fees and disbursements. Notwithstanding anything contained in this
Agreement to the contrary, to the extent any advances paid to you pnor 1o the Term hereof
consiitute a pre-payment of royalties in respect to which Manager 1s entilled 10 its Fee under this

Agreement, such Fee shall accrue 1o Manager as and when such royalties or other payments are
credited against the applicable advance(s).

(d) You agree thai you shall pay all your expenses which may arise in
connection with your activities in the Music Industry including, bul not limited 10, the cost of
malerial, equipment, {acilities, transporiation, lodging and living expenses, costumes, make-up,
promotion, publicity, accounting and legal fees. and M shell, not_haye. iahility

o ™ ravel 10 mneei Willl you &l
particulas place; however, when Manager travels on your behalf, at your request, it shall be at
your sole expense. You agree to reimburse Manager for all documented expenses (sometimes
hereinafter, “Expenses™) which Manager advances or incurs on your behalf herewnder, including,
but not limited 1o, the cost of couriers, transportation underiaken by Manager at your request o
with your consent and al) lodging and living_expenses.connected. therewith-~You-shall-have the 7
right o approve each single item of expense in excess of Five Hundred ($500) Dollars and
apgregate monthly expenses in excess of One Thovsand ($1,000) Dollars. For the avoidance of
doubt, Manapger's office overhead shall not be included as “Expenses” hereunder. For purposes
of this subparagraph (d), when traveling with Artist, the class of airfare or accommodations of
Mapager’s employees shall not exceed that of Artist's and when traveling on behalf of Artist and

othes client’s of Menager, Artist shal) be responsible for not more than s pro rata share of
Manaper’s expenses. :

5

| ]

(e) The interest and compensation set forth hereinabove which shall be paid 10
Menager shall be s continuing interest, and shall not be revocable at your pleasure, 1t js intended
by you 1o creale an agency coupled with an interest and the appointment and engagement of

Manager and Manager's right to receive the Fee as provided for herein are the inducernents for
Manager 1o enter into this Agrcement.

6. (a) The parties hereby acknowledge thal from 1ime 10 time during the Term
hereof, Manager or other persons or entities (i) that are owned and/or controlled by Manpager, or
(31) that own and/or control Manager, or (iii) that are in common pownership and/or control with
Manager (“Manager's Affiliates™), may package an enlertainment program in which you are
engaged as an artist, or may act as the entreprepeur or promoter of an eniertainment program in
which you are engaged as an artist, or may engage you in connection with the recording and/or
production of phonograph records, or as a songwriter, composer, arranger or otherwise in
connection with the creation of musical works. Any agreement or arrangement between
Manager and Manager's Affiliate(s) for such activity shall not (A) constitule a breach of this
Agreement or of Manager's fiduciary obligations and duties to you, or (B) in any way affect

Manager's right 1o its Fee hereunder in a)] instances not covered by the exceptions hereinafier set
farth.
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(b) Manager shall not be entitled 1o iis Fee from you in connection with any
.monies or other considerations derived by you (i) from any employment or agreement
whereunder you are employed by Manager (or by Manager's Affiliates) in which Manaper (or
Manager's Affiliates) is acting as (A) the packager of the entertainment program in which you
are so employed, or (B) your music publisher, or (C) your record company; or (1)) from the sale,
Jicense or grant of any musical rights to Manager (o1 to Manager's Affiliates).

(c) You understand and agree that Manager shall pot render por shall
Manager be obligated 1o render the personal manspement services contemplated n this
Agreement with respect to the aforesaid non-commissioneble activities, snd in comnection
therewith, you shall have the right to seek and retain independent advice.
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i 3) U A EnpAg e A CETLTIEG ] nﬂbiﬁ:“a_caem—-?.ﬁ_m (Sornenines hercin called
ﬂ]e "Accouniant™) acceptable o Manager, acting reasonably, which Accountant shall be engagcd
al vour sole expense. The Accountant shall have the right 1o collect and receive, on your behalf,
8]} of your Gross Compensation bereunder excepl as otherwise provided in subparagraph 7(e)
above, and deposit such Gross Compensation in one or more separate segregated band accounts
n your name. The Accountant and any apd all successors shall acknowledge. and assume.all oi

fie obligations under this Agreerncnt hat relate 1o the Accouniant's function. In this conmection,
you shall notify and irrevocably direct any and all third parties o pay all Gross Compensation
directly 1o the Accountant, except as otherwise provided in subparagraph 7(e) below.
Furthermore, you shall irrevocably suthorize, direct and cause the Accountant 10 pay Manager
the Fee and any reimbursement or payment of Expenscs due Manager hereunder, within the first
Hfieen (15) days of each calendar month during the Term of this Apreement (except weckly
during any personal appearance lour) and thereafler so long as Manager is entitled to receive
Manager's Fee, together with a written accounting staternent.  Said accounting statements shall,
among other things, set forth 8)] gross monies received by the Accountant on yow behalf during

the preceding rmonth, specifying the source thereof and the deductions therefmm for Manager's
Fee herennder.

(b) In the event that the first Accountan! to render services in connection with this
Agreermnent 5 to be terminated, or the services of any other Accountant arc 1o be terminated, then
you shall select a mutually acceptable (each party acling reasonably) certified public accountant
1o replace the Accountant. However, il is agreed by the parlies hereto that in no event shall any
Accountant's services actually bec terminated hereunder prior io the engagement by you and

Manager of the accountant who shall replace the Accountant who is 1o be terminated pursuant to
the tetms and conditions hereof,

(c) Except as expressly set forth in subparagraph 7(e) below, in the event that you or
Manager or any party on your or Manager's behalf, as the case may be, shall receive any Gross

Compensalion hercunder, yon or Manager, as the case may be, shall forthwith remit all such
sums directly to the Accouniant

(d)  If you shall fail o so engage an Accountant to receive your Grogs Compensation
o1 {o account 1o Manager and make payments as provided for in subparagraph 7(a) above, you
hereby authonze Manager 1o collect Gross Compensation from all third parties, 1o deduct and



retain the Fee and reimbursement for Expenses therefrom, and Manager shall account and pay 10
. you the balance thereof promptly thereafier.

()  Notwithstanding anything conlained ip this Apreement 1o the contrary, you shali
notify and urevocably direct any and all third parties 1o pay directly to Manager the Fee due 1o
Manager hereunder with respect 1o all recording, publishing, merchandising and booking agency
sgreements in respect of your activities in the Music Industry. Should you fail to do so within
thirty (30} days following Manaper’s request (or such shorter period of time as exigencies may
tequire), then Manager shall have the right to sigo such a direction of payment in your name,
pursuant to paragraph 4 above, and deliver same 1o such third parties. Such Fee shall be payable

to Manager immediately upon payment or credit to you or any other person on your behalf of the
Gross Compensahcm upon which such F ee is based.

gy

your Books and Records to ascertain the amounts due Mansger, and Manager agrees thal you
and your representatives may inspect and audit those portions of Manager's Books and Records
which concermn you. The aforementioned avdits and/or inspections, if any, shall be conducted

upon rcasnnab]a nouCe to lhc part} 10 be audl‘u:d ar ms_PE_cied ‘Bnoks and Recmds u.sed

without ]umtatmn= I:Ompmt:r files, concemmg fmancml matters. Manager 5 nghl 10 s0 iDSpCGl
and audil your Books and Records with respect 1o any particulas statement that shall have been
rendered on your behalf 1o Manager hereunder shall be deemned binding upon Manager uniess
writlen objection thereto is provided 1o you within three (3) years after Manager's receipt of such

sistements and a lawsull with respect therelo is commenced within four (4) years afier such
receipl,

9. You hercby acknowledpe that Manager's position hereunder is that of an

independent contractor. Menager's services are not exclusive to vou and Manager shall be
permitted to perform the same or similar services for otber artists or persons dunng the Term of
this Agreemenl. Manager shall be permitied 10 devole such time and efforis to other business
activities as Manager may deem necessary or desirable, in Manager's sole discretion.

10, (&) You hereby warrant and represent that you have the right to make and
enter into this Agreement and 1o grant all of the rights herein granted to Manager, and that you
are not now under contract 1o, or have any other writien agreement or oral understanding with,

any other personal manager or other party which would prevent you from performing your
obligations herennder or diminish the Fee otherwise paysble to Manager;

_ {b) Manager hereby warranis and represents that 11 has the 1ight to make and
enter mnto this Agreement.

(©) You shall at all times defend, indemnify and hold harmless Manager and
Meanager's Affiliate's, and all officers, agents, affiliates, licensees and distributors (collectively,
the "Manzger Indemnitees”) from and apsinst any apd all demands, claims, damages, liabilities,
costs and expenses, including lepal expenses and 1casonable counsel fees, arising oul of any
alleged breach or breach by you, of any warranty, representation or agreemenl made by you

You agree ihat Man_ager and Manaper's representatives may nspect and audit




herein, or pertaining to any act, €I1or or omission allegedly commitied or orpitted by you or any

_person or enlity allepedly acting on your behalf or under your direction or control, which such

claim is reduced to a final judgment in & courl of competent jurisdiction or is settled with the
your consent, which such consent shall not be unreasonsbly withheld or delayed. You will
rexmburse Manager, Manager's Affiliates and the Manager Indemnitees, on demand, for any
payment made at any time afier the date hereof in respect of any lisbility or claim io respect of
which Manager, Manager's Affiliates or the Manager Indemnitees are entitled 1o be indemnified
hereunder. Manager shall at al] times defend, indemnify and hold harmless you and your agents,
successors and assigns (collectively, the “Arist Indemnitees™) from and agains! any and all
demands, claims,- damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, including ‘legal expenses and
reasonable counsel fees, arising out of any alleged breach or breach by Maunager of any warranty,
representation or agreement made by Manager herein, or pertammg to any acl, error or omlssmn

Ui‘xhl“u\—d“ui';,ﬁ.uj ’C’\_.

‘bemdemtitied - Rerconder

A R R AR e SO O E D Bin mged yoBotin,

Manager’s behalf or under iis direction or conirol, which such claim is reduced 1o a fmal

judgment in a court of competent jurisdiction or is settied with the Manager’s cansent, which
such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Manaper will reimburse you and
the Artist Indemnilees, on demand, for any payment made at any time afier the date hereof in
respect of any lialhity or claim in respacl of which you or thr: Arhsi ]ndemmtees are €r em]ﬂed fo

11.  You shall have the right 10 termninate the Term of this Agreement if Manager dies
or becomes permanently disabled or if Manager ceasecs to be personally invelved in the
management of your career and, within a reasonsble time following Manager’s receipt of your
notice complaining of same, fails to resume such personal invalvement.

12, As used in this Agreement, the following terms shall bave the meanings set forth

below:

(=) “"Music Industry” - ineludes, without limitation, but subjecl to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, all services and activities, whether as & performer, producer,
writer, publisher or otherwise, in such fields of endeavor as phonograph records (including but
not limited to recording and production), transcriptions, musical performances, singing, radio,
Fusic, personal appearances, concerls, roadshows, tours, cafe and cabarel performing, hotel,
restawrant and private function performing, commercial merchandising, sponsorships,
endorsernents and te-ins; and the sale, lease or other disposition of musical material which you
may create, compose, write or collaborate, direcily or indirectly, in whale or in part and any

musical act, unit or package show of which you may be the ownet or panl owner, directly or
indirectly.

(b) (1) “Gross Compensation™ - includes, without limitation, any and al
forms of income, payments, consideration, compensation, sums, emoluments or any ather thing
of value, including salaries, advances, fees, royalties, bonuses, gifts, shares of receipts, stock end
stock options (subject 10 Manager’s payment of the same proportionate price paid by Artist, if
any, in respect of such stock or stock options), paid to you or applied for your benefit directly or
indirectly (i.e., any corporation, partnership, or other entity in which you have an interest) or




credited to your account, regardless of by whom procured, as a result of your activities in and
. throughout the Music Industry.

(1) Notwithstanding the foregoing, there shall be excluded from Gross
Compensation hereunder: '

(A)  Actual bona fide recording costs (excluding personal

advances 10 you) of master recordings embodying your performances as a featured recording
artist,

(B)  Actal bona fide costs and expenses of so-called “music
videos” embodying your recorded performances,

0]

(C}  Monies payable from a record company to you as
recoupable "“lour support”, as that term is used in the music industry, but solely to the exient that
such four support is paid 10 you or on your. behalf to make up a deficit incurred by you in
cormection with such tour (i.e., to the extent that monies generated from such tour are less than
monics payable o you, o1 on your behalf, by unrelated.third.parties.in.copnection.with: such tous)

T provided T Uhat monies payable as "tﬁfﬁji’éﬁggﬁah”ahdfdf salary for your services shall not be
deemed tour support.

(D)  Monies paid to unrelated third parties for sound and lights
and “opening acts™ in copnection with your concert performances.

(E)  Monies paid by you to unrelated third parly producers of
master recordings and videos embodying your performances and to co-writers and unrelated cao-
publishers of musical compositions written by you.

(F)  Actval bona fide costs and expenses of manufacturing
commemorative Arlist merchandise sold by Artist;

(G)  Monies paid to vnrelated third parties for independent radio
promotien;

(H) _ Costs of collection of Gross Compensation; and
1 Passive investment income.

13. Manager may assipn this Agreement to any third party, including, wiihout
limitation, 1o any of Manager's Affiliates or to any person or entity owning or acquiring a
substantial portion of the stock or assets of Manager. You may not assign this Agreement or any
of your rights hereunder, and any such atlemnpted assignment shall be void. This Agreement
shall be binding wpon you and Maunager and shall jnure to the benefil of your and Manager's
Tespective successors and assigns. This Agreement shall also be binding upon any entity which,
directly or indirectly, in whole or pan, through one or more intermediaries, owned or contrals, is
owned or controlled by, or is under comunen ownership or conuro] with, you (2 "Controlled



Entity®). Accordingly, this Agreement is hereby accepted by you on your behslf and on behalf
.of each Controlled Entity.

14.  Manager shall have the right during the Term bereof to obtain life insurance on
your life at Manager's sole cost and expense, with Manager being the sole beneficiary thereol
and in an amouni lo be determined by Manager in Manager's sole discretion. You shall
cooperale in connection with the obtaining of same, provided that you shall not be required to
submit 10 any physical examination. You hereby acknowlcdge that neither you nor your estate
shall have any ripht to claim the benefits of any such policy obtained by Manager.

15.  Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be given by regstered or certified mayl or te]egraph (p_Le_paJd) ai the respeclive
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either parly. Such notices shall be deemed given when mailed or delivered to = telcgraph office,
except that notice of change of address or notice under subparagraph 17(b) below shall be
cffective only from the date of its receipt. A copy of all potices piven to Manager shall be

sirpultaneously sent by the same method of delivery to the address listed above. A copy of all

P ez W

"Mark, Esq, Bames Mofis KIen Fark Yorn Barnes & Levine, 1474 Second Streel, Third Floar,
Sania Monica, CA 30401.

notices given 1o Artist shall be simultaneously sent by the same method of delivery to Doug

16. (a) This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the pariies hereto
relating 1o the subject matier hereof and cannot be changed or terminated by you except by an
instrument signed by you and an officer of Manager. A waiver by either party of any term aor
condition of this Agreement in any instance shall not be deemed or construed as a waiver of such
term or condition for the future, or of any subsequent breach thereof. All remedies, rights,
undertakings, obligations, and agreements contained in this Agreement shall be curpulative and

none of them shall be in limitation of any other remedy, right, underiaking, oblipation or
agreement of either parly.

(b) No breach of this Agreement on the parl of either party shall be deemed
matenial, unless the other party shall have given notice of such breach and the breaching party
shal] have failed 1o cure such breach within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, if such
breach is reasonably capable of being fully cured within such thirty (30) day period; or if such
breach is not reasonsbly capable of being fully cured within such thirty (30) day period, if such
breaching parly commences to cure such breach within such thirty (30) day period and proceeds
with reasonable diligence 1o complete the curing of such breach.

‘(t:) Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed 1o create a partnexship or
}oint venture between Manager and you.

(d) This Agreement has been entered inte iv 1he State of Califormia, and the
validity, inlerpretation and legal effect of this Agreement shall be governed by the Jaws of the
State of California applicable 10 contracis eniered into and performed entirely within tbe State of
Califomia. The Czlifornia courts, only, will have jurisdiction of any controversies regarding this
Agreemenl; and, any action or other proceeding which invelves such a contoversy will be



brbughl 1n the courts Jocaled within the County of Los Angeles, and not elsewhere. Any process
. in any action or proceeding corsmenced in the courts of the Stale of California arising out of any

such claim, dispute or disagreement, may, among other methods, be served upon you by
delivering or mailing the same, via regisiered or certified mail, addressed to you at the address
first above written or such other address as you may designate pursuant lo paragraph 15 hereof.

Any such delivery or mail service shall be deemed o have the same force and effect as personal
service within the State of California.

(€) If any parl of this Apreement shall be determined to be invalid or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by any other legally constituted body

having junsdiction to make such determination, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in
fLI]] force and cﬁect
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FREEDMAN & TAITELMAN, LLP
ATTORNEYS ATLAW

19801 AVENUE OF THE STARS, SUITE 500
LOS ANGELES, CALIFORNIA 90067
TEL: (310} 201-0005
FAX: (310) 201-0045
E-MAIL: bfreedmaon(aifillp.com

BRYAN ] FREEDMAN OUR FILE NUMBER

September 11, 2006

VIA E-MAJIL. PERSONAL DELIVERY AND U.S. MAIL

Mr.Rob-Kahane: ——mmom -om oo s e i e
3757 Calle Joaguin
(Calabasas, California 91302

rkahane(@XashaneEnt.com

Re: The Collective/daron Ray v. Rob Kahane
{Concerning Drake Bell)

Dear Mr. KXahane:

This law firm represents Aaron Ray (“Ray”) and The Collective (the “Collective™) in connection
with various matiers including, but not limited 1o, the possibility of filing litigation agamnst you
for your intentional interference with Mr. Ray’s writlen coniractual agreement with Drake Bell
(“Bell™), and for your interference with the Collective’s prospective economic advantage with
respect to Bell. As such, all future communications regarding this matter should be directed to
this Jaw firm only.

As you have been aware for a long time, Mr. Ray has had an on-going professional relationship
with'Bell and has represented him as his exclusive personal manager in connection with Bell’s
activities in all areas of the entertainment industry. As you are also well aware, Mr. Ray has a
written, management agreement (the “Agreement”) with Bell whereby Bell engaged Mr. Ray “as
[his] exclusive personal manager, representative and advisor, throughout the world, with respect
to all [of Bell’s] activities throughout the Music Industry. . .. You have known of the
Agreement since July 19, 2006 when you were present at Ago restaurant with Bell and Mr. Ray,
during which time Bell personally signed the Agreement in your presence. To the exient that you
have developed voluntary, self-induced amnesia concerning thal event, 1 enclose another copy of
the Agreement for your records.



~ Mr. Rob Kahane
September 11, 20006
Page 2

The Collective and Mr. Ray have recently learmed, through various individuals, of your scheme
to encourage, cajole and palaver Bell lo terminate his relationship with Mr. Ray and the
Collective, breach the Agreement and sign a management agreement with you 1o become his
personal representative in the music indusiry. 1t is also our understanding that in committing
these tortious acts you used property, trade secrets and confidential information of the Collective
in an effort 1o further your scheme.

.. ¥eushauld:he-aviarehat-ifBellterminatesarin-any othepway breaches the Asreement-von.. .

will be liable for Intentional Interference with Contractual Relations, based“upon your know]edge e

of the Agreemenl and intent lo induce its breach. See Dryden v. Tri-Valley Growers (1977) 65
Cal. App.3d 990, 995; Springer v. Singleton (1967) 256 Cal.App.2d 184, 187-188; see also
Abrams & Fox, Inc. v. Briney (1974) 39 Cal. App.3d 604, 608; Greenberg v. Hollywood Turf
Club (1970) 7 Cal.App.3d 968, 975; Fr eed V. Manchesze: Sewwes Inc. (]958) 165 Cal.App.2d
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Moreover, you will also be liable for Interference with Prospective Economic Advaniage based
upon your intentional acts designed 1o disrupt the contractual relationship between Mr. Ray and
the Collective and Bell. See Reeves v. Hanlon (2004) 33 Cal.4th 1140, 1148. See Pacific Gas &
Eleciric Co. v. Bear Stearns & Co. (1990) 50 Cal.3d 1118, 1126. See also Quelimane Co. v.
Steward Title Guaranty Co. (1998) 19 Cal.4th 26, 56. Mr. Kahane, 1 caution you to not take any
further action with respect to interfering with the Collective’s and Mr. Ray’s rights with respect

to the Agreement. 1 trust that, given your history of {estimony thai has been guestionable, at best,

should you even atiempt 1o dispute your interference, the witnesses and documents we are aware
of which refute your claims will, once again, allow you the conlinued opportunity o act as an
unreliable and untrustworthy witness.

The Agreement is a valid and existing contract between Mr. Ray and Bell, of which you had
knowledge as described abave. You have demonstrated a ciear intention o induce its breach by
encouraging Bell 1o {erminate the Agreement and sign a similar contract with you. 1If, in fact,
Bell terminates the Agreement (thereby breaching i1) and the breach was caused by your
unjustified or wrongful conduct in encouraging Bell to terminaie it, you are liable 1o Ray and the
Collective for all damages suffered by them as a result of Bell’s termination of the Agreement,
based on both of the causes of action referenced above, in addition 1o other remedies under the
law.

Furthenmore, we have been informed by various sources that you have defamed Mr. Ray, the
Collective, and Michael Green in connection with your attempis to interfere with the Agreement
and with the Collective’s prospeciive economic advantage vis-a-vis Bell. 1f, in fact, this is true,
then you will be sued for defamation and be liable for all damages suffered by Mr. Ray, the
Collective and Mr. Green in connection with said defamation.
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Mr. Rob Kahane
September 11, 2006
Page 3

Be further advised that Mr. Ray and the Collective will take all necessary and appropnate legal
action against you should the Agreement be terminated by Bell. You are hereby directed 1o cease
and desisi any and all actions which interfere, or attempt to interfere, with the Agreement, the
rights of the parties thereto, or which interfere, or attempt to interfere, with the prospective
economic advantage of Ray or the Collective with respect to the Agreement. You are hereby put
on notice that Ray and the Collective will seek damages against you in the event you continue
such conduct. Given your history in litigation and lack of credibility as a witness, there 1s no

BIFmv

" Ray's and the Collective’s prospective economic advantage vis-a-vis the Agreement, should Bell

terminaie the Agreement.

Mr. Kahane, based on your reputation, 1 am sure yon have received numerous letters in the past .
which have made hollow threats to sue you based on your questionable conduct throughout your
caréer. Y oushould-beradvised thathisis not-one of those Tetters: Should Bell*termmate;or ~
otherwise breach, the Agreement, you will be sued.

Very tmli YOUrs,

%

Enclosur
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Agreement ("Agreement™) made executed this 17t day of July 2006, by snd between

~Aaron Ray, 9100 Wilshire Blvd, Suite 700 West, Beverly Hills, CA 90212 (herein called

“Manager”) -and- Dreke Bell (herein called “herein czlled "you™ or " Artist™).

WITNESSETH:

In consideration of the mutua] covenants and promises hereinafler contained, the partics
hereby agree as follows:

1. The term of this Agreement (the “Term™) shall be deemcd to have commenced as
of June 1, 2005 and shall continue until the completion of the Album Cycle (defmed below)
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/ recorded studio performances released pursuant 1o a Recording Agreement (each, an ”Album“)

- {G0Yd&y period - 1o terminate the Term. upon Wwritten nolice 16° “Maiager.

during the Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if total Gross Compensation on which the Fee
(defined below) is payable ("Commissionable Gross™) does not equal or exceed Five Hundred
Thousand Dellars (3500,000) as of the end of the Album Cycle respecting the second Album
released during the Term, then you shall have the dght during the ithmediately_ensuing ninety
I upor For purposes of the
preceding sentence only, "Commissionable Gross” shall include compensation payable pursuant |
1o offers declined by Arlist during the Term, monies received on your behalf by agents but not
yel disbursed to you, net advances 10 you pursnant 1o a Recording Agreement (i.e., gross amount
less actual expended recording costs) and an amount equal 10 the Tovalties payable with respecl
lo the exploilation of recordings or musical compositions during the Term for which you shall
have yet to be accounted. As used herein, a “Recording Agreement” shall mean an agreement
respecling your services Bs a musical recording artist with a record Jabel with its own marketing
and promotion capabilities which is distributed in the United Stsles by one of the, currently four,
so-called “mejor’ record distributors (i.e., Sony BMG, Warner, EMI or Universal) o7 the
successor of any of the foregoing. As used herein, an "Album Cycle” shall mean the period

ending on the Jater to occwr of 1the end of touring in supponl of a particular Album o1 the
comynencement of recording of the immediately succeeding Album.

2. You hereby engage Manager, during the Term hereof, as your exclusive personal
manager, Tepresentative and advisor, throughout the world, with respect to al} your activities
throughout the Music Industry, and Manager hereby accepts such engagement.

3. (a) Manaper shall confer with, counsel and advise you in all matiers
pertaining to your career in the Music Industry including, without limitation (i) the selection of
literary, artistic, and musical material; (ii) all matters pertaining to publicity, public relations and
advertising; (iil) general practices in the Music Industry regarding such matiers as Managesr has
knowledge, such ss compensation and pnvileges exiended for similar anjstic services; (iv) the
selection of, and negotiation with, theatrical booking end similar agencies and other third pariies

that seck and procure employment and engagements for artists; and (v) the selection of, and
negotiation with, any and all polential users of your talemts.
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() You shall use your best efforis 1o immediately advise Manaper of all

. offers of employment, and of all inquiries concemning yowr career, so thal Manager may

determine and advise you whether same are compatible with your career.

(c) You hereby acknowledge that Manager is not licensed under the Labor
Code of the State of California as a talent agent or as an employment agent or otherwise under
the Business and Professions Code of the State of California, or as a thestical employment
agency or other employment agency under the General Business Law of the State of New York
or as any of the foregoing under the laws of any State, and that Manager has not promised to
procure employment or engagements for you, and that Manager shall not be oblipated to procure
any cmployment or engagements for you hereunder.  You shall be solely responsible for
payment of all necessary commissions 1o booking or similar apencies.
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4. You hereby authorize and appoint Manager as your true and lawful egent and
allorney-in-fact to do everything for you and in your behalf which you could legally do on your
own behalf, which is permissible hereunder. This power 1s limited 1o the right, power and
privilege 1o exccule for you, in yowr neme, and on your behalf, documents and contracls for yow
services solely in connection with single engagemenis (i.e.. so-called “one-nighter 2).conceming . ...
WHICH You have Prévicusly been advised and which you have “approved, and to approve
photographs and other publicity materials pertaining to you which incorporate likenesses of you
that have been approved by you.

5. In consideration of the services rendered by Manager to you hereunder, subject 1o
the terms and conditions of this Agreemenl, you hereby imevocahbly assipn to Manager, and von

shall pay to Manager, as and when reccived by you or applied in your behalf, sums equal to the
{following (the “Fee™):

(8) With respect to your services in the Music Industry and the products thereof
that arc released during or within six (6) months following the Term pursuant to agreemenis

cnlered into by you prior to or during the Temm, fifteen percent (15%) of the Gross
Compensation eamed in connection therewith, in perpetuity.

(b) (Intentionslly Deleted]

(c)  The Fee shall be paid 1o Manager as and when said Gross Compensation is
recejved by you, without any Jimitation of time, directly or indirectly, or by any person, firm or
corporation on your behalf pursvant 1o (i) any and all contracts, engagements and commitmenis
now in existence, (if) any and all contracts, engagements and commitments entered inlo or
ncpotiaied during the Term hereof, (iii) any and ali extensions, additions, substitutions, renewals,
replacernents, modifications and amendments of all such contracts, enpagements and
commitments referred to in (), and (ii) above, (iv) any and all copyrights and publishing rights in
musical compositions written, composed, atranged or adapted, in whole or in part, by you prior
1o or during the Term, and (v) any and all judgments, swards, settlements, payments, damages
and praceeds telsting to any suils, claims, zctions, proceedings or arbitration proceedings ansing
ow of alleped breach, non-performance or infringernent by others of any of the coniracts,
engagements, commitments, other agreements or rights referred 10 in (i), (11), (311) and (jv) above,
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al] of which segardless of when entered into, when performed and when effective. Any monies

- due 1o Manager resulting from subparagraph 5(c)(v) above, shall be computed after first

deducting counsel fees and disborsements. Notwithstanding anyihing contained in this
Agreement to the contrary, fo the extent any sdvances paid to you prior to the Tertn hereof
conslitule a pre-payment of royaliies in respect to which Manager is entitled 10 its Fee under this

Agreement, such Fee shal] accrue to Manager as and when such royalties or other payments are
credited against the spplicable advance(s).

(d) You agree that you shall pay all your expenses which mey arise in
conneclion with your activities in the Music Industry including, but not limited 1o, the cost of
malenial, equipment, facilities, transportation, lodging and Jiving expenses, costumes, make-up,
promotion, publicity, acmunting_ and legal fees. and Manager_shall. not_haye.any. liahil

particular place; however, when Manager travels on your behalf, at your request, it shall be at
your sole expense. You agree to reimburse Manager for all documented expenses (sometimes
hereinafter, “Expenses”) which Manager advances or incurs on your behalf hereunder, including,
but noi limited to, the cosl of couriers, transportation undertaken by Manager at your request or
with your consent and all lodging and living_expenses.connected. therewith=-¥ou-shallhave the
right ta” approve each single item of expense in excess of Five Hundred ($500) Dollars and
aggregate monthly expenses in excess of One Thousand (§1,000) Dollars. For the avoidance of
doubt, Manager's office overhead shall not be included as “Expenses” hereunder. For purposes
of this subparagraph (d), when traveling with Antist, the class of airfare o1 accommodations of
Manager’s employees shall not exceed that of Artist’s and when wavelitg on behalf of Artist and

other client’s of Manager, Artist shall be responstble for not more than its pro rata share of
Manager’s expenses. :

(e} The jnterest and compensation set forth hereinabove which shall be paid 1o
Manaper shall be a continuing interest, and shall not be revocable at your pleasure. 1t is intended
by you o cresic an agency coupled with an interest and the appointment and engagement of

Manager and Manager's right 1o receive the Fee as provided for herein are the inducernents for
Manager 1o enter into this Agreement. '

6. (a) The parties hereby acknowledge that from lime 1o time during the Term
hereof, Manager or other persons or entities (i) that are owned and/or controlled by Manager, or
(1) that own and/or control Manager, or (jii) that are in common ownership and/or control with
Manager ("Manager's Affiliales™), may package an entertainment program in which you are
engaged as an artist, or may act as the entrepreneur or promoter of an eniertainment Propram in
which you are engaged as an artist, or may engage you in conpection with the recording and/or
production of phenograph records, or as a songwriter, composer, arranger or ofherwise in
comection with the creation of musical works, Any agreement or arangement between
Manager and Manager's Affiliate(s) for such activity shall not {(A) constitule a breach of this
Agreement or of Manager's fiduciary obligations and duties to you, or (B) in any way affect

Manager's right 10 its Fee hereunder in a)l instances not covered by the exceptions hereinafier set
forth.




(b) Manager shall not be entitled 1o its Fee from you in connection with any

. monies or other considerations derived by you (i) from any employment or agreement

whereunder you are employed by Manager (o1 by Manager's Affiliates) in which Manager (or

Manager's Affiliates) is acting as (A) the packager of the enterlainment program in which you

are so employed, or {B) your music publisher, or (C) your record company; or (i1} from the sale,
license or grant of any musica) rights to Manager (o1 to Manager's Affiliates).

(c) You undersiand and agree ihat Manager shall not render nor shall
Manager be obligated to render the personal mansgement services contemplated in this
Agreement with' respect to the aforcsaid pon-commissionable activities, and in connection
therewith, you shall have the right 1o seek and retain independent advice.
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the "ACGDUITLEUJI ) acceplah]e to Manager, acting reasonably, which Accountant shall be engaged
at your sole expense. The Accountant shall have the right to collect and receive, on your behalf,
all of your Gross Compensation hereunder except as otherwise provided in subparagraph 7(e)
above and deposii such Gross Compensation in one or more separate sagregatecl band sccounts

you shall nohfy and 1rrev0cab]y direct any and all third parl:les o pay all GTDSS Compcnsahon
directly 1o the Accountant, except as otherwise provided in subparagraph 7(e) below.
Furthermore, you shall irrevocably autborize, direct and cause the Accountant 1o pay Manager
the Fee and any reimbursement or payment of Expenses due Manager hereunder, within the first
fifteen (15) days of each calendar month during the Term of this Agrcement (except weckly
during any personal appcarance tour) and thereafier so long as Manager is entiled to receive
Manager's Fee, together wilh @ wntten accounting statement. Said accounting statements shall,
armong other things, set forth all pross monies received by the Accountant on your behalf during

the preceding month, specifying the source thercof and the deductions tharefrom for Manager's
Fee hereunder.

(b)  In the event that the first Accouniant to render services in connection with this
Agreement is to be lerminated, or the services of any other Accountant are to be terminated, then
you shall select a8 mutually acceptable (each party acling reasonably) certified public accountant
to replace the Accountant. However, il is agreed by the parties hereto that in no event shall any
Accountant’s services actually be lerminated hereunder prior to the engagement by you end

Manager of the accountant who shall replace the Accountant who is to be terminated pursuant to
the terms and conditions hereof.

(c) Except as expressly set forth in subparagraph 7(g) below, in the event that you or
Manager or any party on your or Manager's behalf, as the case may be, shall receive any Gross

Compensation hereunder, you or Manager, as the case may be, shall forthwith remit all sach
sums directly to the Accountant

(d)  If you shall fail to so enpgage an Accountant to receive your Gross Compensation
or to account 1o Manager and make payments as provided for in subparagraph 7(a) above, you
hereby authorize Manager 10 collect Gross Compensation from all third parties, 10 deduct and
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retain the Fee and reimbursement for Expenses therefrom, and Manager shall account and pay to
. you the balance thereof promptly thereafier.

(e)  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement {o the contrary, you shall
notify and irrevacably direct any and all third parties 10 pay directly to Manager the Fee due 1o
Manager hereunder with respect to all recording, publishing, merchandising and booking agency
spreements in respect of your activities in the Music Industry. Sheuld you fail to do so within
thirty (30) days following Manaper’s request (or such shorier period of time as exigencies may
require), then Manager shall have the fght to sign such a direction of payment in your name,
pursuant to paragraph 4 above, and deliver same 1o such third parties. Such Fee shall be payable

to Manager immediately upon payment or credit to you or any other person on your behalf of the
Gross Compensahon upon which such Fec s based

: aas L

8. You agree 1hat Manager and Managers represenlanves may lnSpecI and audn
your Books and Records to ascertain the amounts due Mansger, and Manager agrees that you
and your sepresentatives may inspect and audil those portions of Manager's Books and Records
which concemn you. The aforementioned audits and/or inspectiuns if any, shall be conducted
upon reasonable notice 1o the party 10 be audited or inspected.  Books and Records? as used
fereinshall*inchide-Icdgers, journals, receipt- books hecks and all olher records, mcludmg
without himitation, computer files, concerning fmancml matters. Manaper's right 1o so inspeat
and audil yowr Books and Records with respect 10 any particular statement that shall have been
rendered on your behalf to Manager hereunder shall be deemed binding upon Manager unless
writlen objection therelo is provided to you within three (3) years afier Manager's receipt of such

statements and a lawsuil with respect thereto is commenced within four (4) years after such
receipl.
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9. You hereby acknowledpe that Manager's position hereunder 1s that of an
independent contractor. Menager's services are not exclusive 1o you and Manager shall be
pemmitted o perform the same or similar services for other artists or persons dunng the Term of
this Agreement. Manager shall be permitied to devote such ime and efforis 10 other business
sctivities as Manager may deem necessary or desirable, in Manager's sole discretion.

10 (a) You hereby warram and represent that you have the night to make and
enter into this Agreement and to grant all of the rights herein granted 1o Manager, and that you
are nol now under contract to, or have any other writien agreement or oral understanding with,

any olher personal manaper or other party which would prevent you from performing your
obligations hereunder or diminish the Fee otherwise payable to Manager;

(b) Manager hereby warrants and represents that 11 has the right to make and
enter into this Agreement.

{c) You shall at 3)] times defend, indemnify and hold harmless Manager and
Manager's Affiliate's, and all officers, agents, affiliates, licensees and distributors (collectively,
the “Manager Indemnitees™) from and against any and all demands, claims, damapes, liabilities,
casts and expenses, including lcgal expenses and rcasonable counsel fees, arising out of any
alleged breach or breach by you, of any wamanty, representation or apreemeni made by you



herein, or pertaining 10 any acl, €IT0¥ OF OMisSSiON allegedly committed or omitted by you or any
_ person or enlity ellegedly acting on your behslf or under your direction or control, which such
cleim is reduced 1o a final judgment in & court of competent jurisdiction or is settled with the
your consen!, which such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. You will
rexmburse Manager, Manager's Affibates and the Manager Indemnitees, on demand, for any
payment made al any lime after the date hereof in respect of any ligbility or claim iu respect of
which Manager, Manager's Affiliates or the Manager Indemnitees are entitled to be indemnified
hereunder. Manager shall at all times defend, indemnify and hold harmless you and your agents,
successors and assigns (collectively, the “Anist Indemnilees”) from and against any and all
demands, claims,  damages, liabilities, costs and expenses, including ‘legal expenses and
reasonable counsel fees, anising ouwt of any alleged breach or breach by Manager of any warranty,
representation or agreement made by Manager herein, or pertaining to any act, error of omission
... eNegedly=commiticduoromitis ,,QWW”EHQW"ﬁEEEEJIU‘T“Gum; e e
Manager’s behalf or under its direction or control, which such claim is reduced 1o a final
judgment in 8 courl of competent jurisdiction or is settled with the Manager’s consent, which
such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. Manaper will reimburse you and
the Artist lndemniiees on demand, for any payment made at any time after the date hereof n

be-irndeninified- Réreundet— ="

1. You shal] have the nght to ferminate the Term of this Agreement if Manager dies
ot becormnes permmanently disabled or if Manager ceases to be personally invelved in the
manzgement of your career and, within a reasonable time following Manager’s receipt of your
notice complaining of same, fails 1o resume such personal involvement.

12.

As used n this Agreemenl, the following terms shall have the meanings set forth
below:

() “Music Industry” - includes, without limitation, but subject to the terms
and conditions of this Agreement, all services and activities, whether as a performer, producer,
writer, publisher or otherwise, in such fields of endeavor as phonograph records (including bul
not limited to recording and production), irenscriptions, musical performances, singing, radio,
music, personal appearances, concerts, roadshows, tours, cafe and cabarei performing, hotel,
restawrant and private function performing, commercial merchandising, spongorships,
endorsernents and ie-ins; and the sale, lease or other disposition of musical malerial which you
may create, compose, write or collaborate, direcly or indirectly, in whole or in part and any

musical acl, unit or package show of which you may be the owner or parl owner, directly or
indirectly.

(b) ) “Gross Compensation” - includes, without Jimitation, any and all
forms of income, payments, consideration, compensation, sums, emoluments or any other thing
of value, including salaries, advances, fees, royalties, bonuses, gifts, shares of receipts, stock end
stock oplions (subject 10 Manager’s payment of the same proportionate price paid by Artist, if
any, in respect of such stock or stock options), paid 1o you or applied for your benefit direcily or
indirectly (i.e., any corporation, partmership, or other entity in which you have an imterest) or



credited to your account, regardless of by whom procured, as a result of your activities in and
throughout the Music Industry.

(1)  Norwithstanding the foregoing, there shall be excluded from Gross
Compensation hereunder: ‘ .

(A)  Actual bona fide recording costs (excluding personal

advances 10 you) of masier recordings embodying your performances as a featured recording
aruist.

(B)  Actval bona fide costs and expenses of so-called “‘music
videos” embodying your recorded performance

B
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(C)  Momnies paysble from a record company 1o you as
recaupable “tour support™, as thal term is used in the music industry, but solely to the extent that
such lour support is paid to you or on your behalf to make up a deficil incurred by you in
connection with such tour (i.e., to the extent that monies generated from such towr are Jess than
monics payable to you, oy on your hehalf, by unielated third.parties.in.copnection with such tour) -- -

pravided that monies payable as compensation and/or salary for your services shall not be
deemed tow suppari.

(D)  Monies paid to wnrelated third parties for sound and liphts
and “opening acts™ in cannection with yowr concerl performances.

(E)  Monies paid by you to unrelated third party producess of
master recordings and videos embedying your performances and to co-writers and unrelated co-
publishers of musical compesitions wnitten by you,

(F)  Actual bons fide costs and expenses of manufacturing
commernolative Arlist mnerchandise sold by Artist;

(G}  Monies pajd to unrelated third parties for independent radio
promotion;

(H) = Costs of collection of Gross Compensation; and

m Passive investment income.

13.  Manager may assign this Agreement to sny third party, including, without
limitation, to any of Manager's Affiliates or lo any person oy entity owning or acguiring a
substantial porlion of the stock or assets of Manager. You may pot assign this Apreement or any
of your rights hereunder, and any such attempted assignment shall be void. This Agreement
shall be binding upon you and Manager and shall inure to the benefit of your and Manager's
respective successors and assigns. This Apreement shall also be binding upon any enlity which,
directly or indirectly, in whole or part, through one or more intermediaries, owned o1 controls, is
owned or controlled by, or is under common ownership or control with, you (a "Controlled



Entity”). Accordingly, this Agreement is hereby accepted by you on your behalf and on behalf
- of cach Contralled Entity.

14.  Manager shall have the right during the Term hereof 1o obiain life insurance on
your life al Manager's sole cost and expense, with Memagcr being the sole beneficiary thereol
and in an amoun! to be determined by Manager in Manager's sole discretion. You shall
cooperaic in connection with the obtaining of same, provided that you shall not be required to
submit to any physical examinetion. You hereby acknowledge that neither you nor your estate
shall have any ripht to claim the benefits of any such policy obtained by Manager.

15.  Bxcept as otherwise specifically provided herein, all notices hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be given by registered or certified mail or telegraph (pur_gpaid) at the IESP Live
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either party. Such notices shall be deemed given when mailed or delivered o & telegraph office,
except that notice of change of address or nolice under subparagraph 17(b) below shail be
effective only from the date of its teceipt. A copy of all potices given to Manager shall be
sirpultanecusly sent by the same method of delivery to the address listed above. A copy of all

_notices given 1o Artist shall be simultaneously sent by the same p method of deliyery to. Doug

"Mark, Esq., Barnes Moiris’ Kiein Mark Yorn Bames & Levine, 1424 Second Sireel, Third Floor,
Sania Monica, CA 90401.

16. (3) This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties hereto
relating to the subject matier hereof and cannot be changed or terminated by you except by an
instrument signed by you and an officer of Manager. A waiver by either party of any term or
condition of this Agrcement in any instance shall not be deemed or construed as a waiver of such
term or condition for the future, or of any subscquen! breach thereof. All remedies, rights,
undertakings, obligations, and agreements contained in this Agreement shall be curnvlative and

none of them shall be in limitation of any other remedy, right, underiaking, obligation or
agreement of either party.

(b)  No breach of this Agreement on the parl of either party shall be deemed
material, unless the ather party shall have piven notice of such breach and tbe breaching party
shall have failed to cure such breach within thirty (30) days after receipt of such notice, if such
breach is reasomably capable of being fully cured within such thirty (30) day period; or if such
breach is nol reasonably capable of being fully cured within such thirty (30) day period, if such
breaching parly commences to cure such breach within such thirty (30) day period and proceeds
with reasonable diligence to complete the curing of such breach.

(c) Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to create a partnership or
joint venture between Manager and you.

(d) This Apreernent has been entered into in the State of California, and the
validity, interpretation and legal effect of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the
State of California applicable 1o contracis entered into and performed entirely within the State of
California. The California eourts, only, will have jurisdiction of any controversies regarding this
Agreemnent; and, any action or other proceeding which involves such a controversy will be

By LTI



brought in e courls localed within the County of Los Angeles, and not elsewhere. Any process
in any action or proceeding coromenced in the courts of the State of California arising out of any
such claym, dispute or disagreement, may, among other methods, be served upon you by
delivering or mailing the same, via repisiered or centified mail, addressed to you at the address
first above wrtten or such other address as you may designate pursuant to paragraph 15 hereof.

Amny such delivery or mail service shall be deemed 10 have the same force and effect as personal
service within the State of California.

(e) If any part of this Agreement shall be determined to be invalid or
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction or by any other legally constituted body

baving junsdiction to make such defermination, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in
full force and effect.

iE.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have
the date and year first above wri

execut

oS
ACCEPTED REED:
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Drake Bell

c/o Barnes Marris Klein Mark
Yom Bames & Levine
1424 Second Street
Santa Monica, CA 90401

September 8, 2006
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Aaron Ray

The Collective

9100 Wilshire Blvd.
Suite 700 West

Beverly Hills; @4=90212

Dear Aaron,
As you are aware, ] have elected to terminate the management relationship between us.

As you should also know, | bave many valid reasons for this decision, but we need not
detai) them here.

Please no longer hold yourself out as my representative and refer all queries regarding my
career 10 Rab Kahane at (818) 458-1151.

Thank you for all of your efforts on. my behalf.

Sincerely,

Drake Bell



